National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number _____ Page _____

SUPPLEMENTARY LISTING RECORD

NRIS Reference Number: 88000563

Port Costa SchoolContra CostaCAProperty NameCountyState

Multiple Name

This property is listed in the National Register of Historic Places in accordance with the attached nomination documentation subject to the following exceptions, exclusions, or amendments, notwithstanding the National Park Service certification included in the nomination documentation.

Patrick	Д	ndr	un	
Signature	of	the	Keeper	

5	25	88
Date d	SE A	ction

Date Listed: 5/25/88

Amended Items in Nomination:

Section 3 of the nomination inappropriately indicated education as a present use even though the building is currently unoccupied. Instead, "park" and "other:vacant" should be checked under present use. This change was confirmed with Marilyn Lortie of the California State Historic Preservation Office on 5/25/88.

National Register of Historic Places Inventory—Nomination Form

date entered

APR | 5 1988 received

See instructions in How to Complete National Register Forms Type all entries—complete applicable sections

1. Name

historic	Port Costa Schoo	1		•
and/or common				
2. Loca	ation			
street & number	Plaza El Hambro	9		N/A not for publication
city, town	Port Costa	N/Avicinity of		
state Calif	fornia cod	e 06 county	Contra Costa	code 013
3. Clas	sification			
Category district building(s) structure site object	Ownership public private both Public Acquisition in process being considered N/A	Status occupied unoccupied work in progress Accessible yes: restricted yes: unrestricted no	Present Use agriculture commercial educational entertainment government industrial military	museum park private residence religious scientific transportation other:
4. Own	er of Prope	rty		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ohn Swett Unified So			
street & number	P.O. Box 847			. •
city, town	Crockett	$\frac{N/A}{N}$ vicinity of	state	California 94525
5. Loca	ation of Leg		on	
courthouse, regi	stry of deeds, etc. Cont	cra Costa County Rec	corder's Office	
street & number	730 Las Juntas			
city, town ^{Ma}	rtinez		state	California
6. Rep	resentation	in Existing	Surveys	
	nary Determiniatior 1 Park Service	n of Eligibility has this pro	operty been determined	aligibie? <u>X</u> yes no
date Oct	ober 1986		<u> </u>	ate county loca
depository for su	arvey records NPO W	RO		
city, town Sa	n Francisco		state	California

7. Description

Condition	Check one X unaitered altered	Check one X original site moved date
-----------	-------------------------------------	--

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Port Costa School is a two-story, classically detailed brick and stucco building in a large school yard in the small town of Port Costa. A flagpole is located in front of the building and a concrete walkway links the front steps of the school with the street. The building itself retains a very high level of integrity both inside and out. Also on the 2.2 acre grounds are volleyball and basketball courts, a baseball field and playground equipment. Except for a set of swings, dating to 1912 and a contributing element, these additional features date to the 1940s and are not considered contributing. There are no outbuildings on the property.

The Port Costa School is a two-story, rectangular block (83' x 95') with a flat roof which is concealed by a low parapet. The structure is wood-framed on a concrete slab foundation. Walls are faced with brick on the ground floor and stuccoed on the upper floor. A portico with four columns and a gable roof frames the entrance to the building which is reached by seven steps and recessed behind the main wall. The four columns had the Corinthian Capitals boxed in during the 1940s. The entrance doors are flanked by two piers with Corinthian Capitals. The doors have been replaced, but the originals are stored in the building. The columns support a triangular pediment with raking cornice which is continued in the molded cornice around the roof of the building. The cornices have dentil courses and medallions. Within the pediment is a decorative relief consisting of an open book set in a wreath with ribbons unfurling on both sides. "Port Costa School" appears in raised letters across the frieze of the portico. Typical windows are casements with fixed sash in transoms. Windows flanking the portico are grouped in threes and have stuccoed lower sections; on the interior, blackboards cover this part of the wall. (The windows were stuccoed when the building was built in 1911-1912.) Some of the windows have had the glass temporarily replaced with plyboard. The rear of the building has an entrance at each end approached by concrete steps.

On the interior, the main floor has a central entrance hall ending in a long cross hall. A skylight at the intersection of the entrance hall and cross hall allows sunlight to pass through the inlaid, glass-block floor to the furnace room below. A large auditorium with sliding partitions, designed to close and make the room divisible into two rooms, occupies the back part of the building. The front half of the building has a classroom on each side. Service spaces, a library, and an office occupy the rooms on each side of the entrance hall. The ground floor was only partially finished; it contains four large rooms with the furnace room at the building's center.

The building is in good condition with only minor alterations on the exterior and interior. Interior wainscoting, door frames and other features are intact. The fixed desks have been removed.

Resource c	ount: 1	contributing	building	l
	1	contributing	object (swings)

8. Significance



Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The Port Costa School is significant under criteria A and C. Under criterion A, the school has played a significant role in the education of generations of Port Costa children because, since 1912, the school has been the only school in Port Costa. (It succeeds two earlier schools which were demolished.) Port Costa is an unincorporated township with a population of 250. It has very few monumental buildings. The Port Costa School is the largest public building in the town.

On April 4, 1911, the residents of the Port Costa School District voted to incur a bonded indebtedness of \$15,000 for the erection of the school. Construction began in August 1911 and was completed in March of 1912. The school opened to students in August of 1912. It served as a grammar school for grades 1-8 until its closure in 1966. During its 54-year history as an active educational facility, approximately 600 children graduated.

Under criterion C, the building was designed by William Wilde, an architect who came to this country in 1907 from Copenhagen, Denmark. By 1908, Wilde was in practice in San Francisco. In 1910, he designed the grammar school in Martinez; in 1911-1912, the Port Costa School, and, in 1912 also, he won the competition for the now-demolished Martinez City Hall.

In 1912, the firm of Wilde & Schaeffer had an office at 1221 Broadway in Oakland. In 1913, Wilde designed the Travelers Hotel in Oakland in association with Otto Schiller. Wilde designed the Bank of Canton (later known as the Asian American Bank) at 500 Montgomery Street. This building has a "B" rating in the San Francisco Downtown Plan and is one of the City's notable "banking temples". All the buildings mentioned above were designed in the Classical Revival Style fashionable in the first decades of the 20th century. (Later works by Wilde from the 1930s and 1940s are outside of the State indicating that he may have moved in the later part of his career.)

The Port Costa School, while not a costly building as were most of the others mentioned above, is representative of the kind of dignified and well-planned building which was appropriate for rural community needs.

Because exceptional significance has not been shown, the period of significance (which extended into recent times) has arbitrarily been ended at the 50 year limit, 1938.

9. Major Bibliographical References

See continuation sheet.

.

Zone Easting Nor C L L L L L L L E L L L L L L L L G L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L	n Plaza El Ham	D F H bre in Port	L L Image Image Image Image <t< th=""></t<>
E List all states and counties for state N/A	n Plaza El Ham pr properties ove	F F H bre in Port	• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Three parcels located on List all states and counties for state N/A	n Plaza El Ham pr properties ove		• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
List all states and counties fo state N/A	or properties ove		• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
state N/A		rlapping state	or county boundaries
	code		-
itate		county	code
	code	county	code
11. Form Prepa	ared By		·
ame/title Sally B. Woo	odbridge, Arch	itectural Hi	storian and Mary Powell, Financial Secre Port Costa Conservation Society
rganization Port Costa C	Conservation S	ociety	date August 3, 1987
street & number 2273 Vine S	Street		telephone (415) 848-4356
ity or town Berkeley			state California 94709
12. State Histo	oric Pres	ervatio	n Officer Certification
The evaluated significance of this	property within the	e state is:	
national	state	X local	Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-
	erty for inclusion in	the National Reg	ister and certify that it has been evaluated
State Historic Preservation Officer	r signature	Kathen	~ Sueltien
Ne State Historic Prese	ervation Offic	er 0	date 4/4/58
For NPE use only Interety certify that the prop out is a And III	porty is included in	na naiza na	5-125-188
Keeper of the National Regime	r		

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number ____10 Page ___1

DESCRIPTION: PORT COSTA SCHOOL, ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER 368-133-007

The land referred to herein is situated in the State of California, County of Contra Costa, Unincorporated, described as follows:

Parcel One:

Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 in Block 8, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 in Block 9; Lots 1 and 2 in Block 12, Section One, as said lots and block are delineated and so designated upon the map entitled, "Map of the Town of Port Costa", Contra Costa County, California, which map was filled in the office of the County Recorder of the County of Contra Costa, State of California on December 1, 1883.

Parcel Two:

Beginning at the most westerly corner of Lot 2 in Block 12, as said lot and block are delineated and so designated upon the map of the town of Port Costa; thence along the southerly line of Block 12 and the westerly line of Blocks 9 and 8, South 71° 28' East, 69.58 feet; South 14° 17' East, 65.54 feet; and South 29° 59' West, 207.81 feet to the most Westerly corner of Lot 8 in Block 8; thence South 60° 01' East, 100 feet to the most Southerly corner of Lot 8 in Block 8; thence South 29° 59' West, 45.11 feet; thence South 60° 01' East, 151.81 feet; thence South 08° 54' West, 45.11 feet; thence South 68° 09' West, 144.39 feet; thence South 42° 06' West, 71.66 feet; thence North 27° 31' 50" West 282.80 feet to a point on the Easterly boundary line of the state highway leading from Crockett to Martinez, and from which point the center of a curve to the left with a radius of 255 feet bears North 47° 45' 50" West; thence Northeasterly and Northwesterly along said curve, through an arc of 63° 42' 46", a distance of 283.56 feet; thence leaving said highway boundary line North 48° 33' East, 132.79 feet to the point of beginning.

Parcel Three:

Beginning at the point of intersection of the Southerly line of Lufkin Street with the Westerly line of the Plaza El Hambre, as said street and plaza are delineated and so designated upon the map hereinabove referred to under Parcel 1; thence along the Westerly line of Plaza El Hambre and the Easterly line of Block 9, South 14^o 17' East, 160.70 feet; thence leaving said line, North 29^o 59' East, 164.47 feet; thence North 83^o 47' East, 122.56 feet to the point of beginning.

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Section number ____10 Page ___2

Boundary Justification: Port Costa School

The Port Costa School District purchased Lots 3, 4, and 5 in Block 9 of the town of Port Costa from Mary A. Bowler on April 10, 1886 for the establishment of the first Port Costa School. Additional property which had served as the Port Costa School Playground and ball field since 1886 was deeded to the Port Costa School District on June 13, 1941 by the G. W. McNear Corporation. The John Swett Unified School District, successor by law to the Port Costa School District, has continued to maintain the property as an integral part of the Port Costa School.

Contra Costa County Recorder's Office: Port Costa School Deeds

Deed for Lots 3, 4, and 5 recorded April 19, 1886 in Book of Deeds, Book 49, Page 357. Deed for additional property recorded August 30, 1941 in Book of Deeds, Book U15, Page 357.







